BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Central Coast Fire & Rescue Training Room
125 East Alsea Highway
Waldport, Oregon 97394
Thursday, September 8, 2022
Board Meeting 5:30 PM

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING REGULAR SESSION

L.

II.

I1L.

IV.

VL

VIL

VIII.

IX.

XL

XII.

XIIL

XIV.

XV.

CALL TO ORDER BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING, REGULAR SESSION
a. Announcement that the meeting is being streamed “Live” on Central Coast YouTube Channel and if
anyone has public comments or questions, they can comment on the live stream and the questions
will be relayed to the Board members and answered at the end of the meeting.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIENCE

ROLL CALL

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
a. Regular Session Minutes
b. Special Meeting Minutes

CITIZEN PARTICIPATION

STAFF PRESENTATIONS
a. Response Logs, Maintenance, & Admin Report

VOLUNTEER REPORT

UNION REPORT

FINANCE REPORT
a. Approval of financial report
b. Approval of expenditures

CORRESPONDENCE

OLD BUSINESS
a. Update on Bldg. Purchase.
e Draft Resolution
b. Civil Service Rules

NEW BUSINESS
a. 2022 Operational Report Draft
b. Open House
CHIEFS REPORT
PRESIDENTS REPORT
QUESTIONS FROM THE CITIZENS AND VIEWING AUDIENCE.

GOOD OF THE ORDER



CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
SEPTEMBER 9, 2022

1. Call to Order. The rescheduled regular meeting of the Central Oregon Coast Fire & Rescue
District Board of Directors was called to order by President Reda Eckerman at 5:30 p.m. on
Thursday, September 9, 2022. She reviewed the procedure for participation by any members of
the audience of the live-streamed meeting.

2. Pledge of Allegiance. Mrs. Eckerman led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. Roll Call. Directors present were Reda Eckerman, Jon MacCulloch, Ray Woodruff, and Kevin
Battles; Zach Akin was excused. A quorum was present.

4. Approval of Minutes. Moved by Mr. Battles, seconded by Mr. Woodruff, to approve the
minutes of the regular Board meeting of August 18, 2022, as presented; motion carried.

5. Citizen Participation. None.

6. Staff Presentations. Training. Chief Mason will have a full report on training at the next
meeting. Maintenance. Maintenance Officer Knudson reported that the electrical work at
Tidewater is done, inspections will be next week, and the Open House is scheduled for Saturday.
There is still some finishing work to be done but it should be completed by Monday. At Station 72,
the brush truck mentioned at the last meeting has been fixed; everything is good to go.
Administration. Office Administrator Knudson commented that the Union Report had been left
off the agenda; she will make sure it is included in the future.

7. Volunteer Report. Mrs. Knudson reminded everyone that there would be Bingo again on
Friday, September 16", and the Open House will be on Saturday. She had received a phone call
from someone relocating here in a few weeks who has wildland experience and wants to fill out
an application.

8. Finance Report. Mr. Quick reported a total cash on hand of $476,751 at the end of August.
The balance is going down each month but should be good until the end of November. Prior
taxes received are above the budgeted amount, but fuel costs at the end of August were already
at 21% of budget. Moved by Mr. Woodruff, seconded by Mr. MacCulloch, to accept the financial
report as presented; motion carried. Moved by Mr. Battles, seconded by Mr. Woodruff, to pay the
bills; motion carried.

9. Correspondence. None.

10. Old Business. New Auditor Proposal. Mrs. Knudson has been in contact with the new
auditors; they are working on a Letter of Engagement and they hope to have it ready by tomorrow
(Friday). Mrs. Eckerman expressed concern that if it was not received by then she will be on
vacation for two weeks and unable to sign, and this is something that should be taken care of as
soon as possible. Moved by Mrs. Eckerman, seconded by Mr. Woodruff, that if the auditor’s letter
is not received by Friday that the Treasurer, Kevin Battles, be authorized to sign it when it arrives;
motion carried.



COCFRD Board Meeting, September 9, 2022....pg. 2

11. New Business. Surplus (PPE). Chief Mason reported that they had found a cache of
expired turnouts and also had water rescue gear that they no longer use and he wanted to have
these declared surplus for donation and for sale. Mrs. Eckerman read the letter which requested
that 7 Morning Pride jackets, 8 Morning Pride pants, 2 Fire Dex pants, 1 Fire Dex jacket, and 1
Globe pants be declared surplus and given to the Woodburn Fire Department for donation to
South American fire agencies. She then read the letter requesting the following water rescue
equipment be declared surplus and sold using the GovDeals online auction: 9 Dry Suits, 10 Wet
Suit Liners, 5 Mustang Suits, 5 hoods, and 1 storage bag. Moved by Mr. Battles, seconded by
Mr. MacCulloch, that all these items be declared surplus; motion carried.

12. Chief’'s Report. Chief Mason had again contacted Mackenzie, but they have not yet
responded. He had requested that they revisit the pricing on the proposal as we have already
done a good bit of work with them. He also wanted to know if any of the work already done would
be reimbursable but only work done after the grant is awarded would be. The Civil Service
Committee met on the 25™ last month and went through the rules very thoroughly; they will meet
again on the 27" to finalize the rules. They will schedule meetings for every 90 days, which is
required, but if there is no business to be done will then go on to the next meeting. They will have
at least one annual meeting. He met with Jessie from FEMA concerning the BRIC grants and is
working with her on the generator and on putting wiring around the station underground. Nothing
new on the National Rescue Relief Act. The Oregon Seismic Grant is being done by Mackenzie
and they are waiting for us. He has still not heard anything on the FEMA SAFER and AFG grants
but they are still being awarded. The OSFM engine grant doesn’t close until October and the
surplus engine request has been made out but again he won’t hear on that one until the state
gets the engines. He is still working with the Port but has told them to use the slip until it's ready
to put the boat in. Station 72 Design/Concept will be discussed during Executive Session. None
of the Action Items can be done until the taxes start to come in.

Chief Mason then gave the Board an update on readiness for the weekend, which has been
declared a Red Flag Warning from Friday morning until Saturday night. The Defense Board met
today and everyone is staffing up in case of an event. Power in parts of the county will be turned
off as a precaution. He has full staffing, keeping the brush crew on duty, and commitments from
the volunteers to stand by for emergencies. He will have an engine and brush rig, plus another
engine, brush rig, and tender available. There will be mutual aid with Yachats, Seal Rock, and
Newport. If there is an event in Alsea they will call us; he will contact them regarding mutual aid
for us. Contingency planning is that in case of an emergency people can come down to the fire
station if the power is out. CERT is on standby. The Open House is still planned for Saturday.

13. President’s Report. None.
14. Questions from the Citizens and Viewing Audience. None.

15. Executive Session. At 5:53 p.m. the regular meeting was closed and an Executive Session
was called under ORS 192.660(2)(e) “To conduct deliberations with persons designated by the
governing body to negotiate real property transactions.” No decisions were made. At 6:57 p.m.
the Executive Session ended and the meeting returned to open session.

16. Actions, if any, from Executive Session. None.



COCFRD Board Meeting, September 9, 2022....pg. 3
17. Good of the Order. None

There being no further business to come before the Board the meeting was adjourned at 6:58
p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Jan K. Hansen, Recording Secretary

Approved:

Board Chair



CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL MEETING

SEPTEMBER 29, 2022

1. Call to Order. The special meeting of the Central Oregon Coast Fire & Rescue District Board of Directors was
called to order by President Reda Eckerman at 5:30 p.m. on Thursday, September 29, 2022.

2. Pledge of Allegiance. Mrs. Eckerman led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. Roll Call. Directors present were Reda Eckerman, Zach Akin, Jon MacCulloch, Ray Woodruff, and Kevin Battles.
A quorum was present.

4. New Business. a. Mackenzie Update. Chief Mason asked that this be postponed until after the Executive Session.

5. Executive Session. At5:32 p.m. the regular meeting was closed and an Executive Session was called under ORS
192.660(2)(e) To conduct deliberations with persons designated by the governing body to negotiate real property
transactions. At 6:19 p.m. the Executive Session ended and the Board returned to regular session. No decisions were
made.

Mackenzie Update. At this time Chief Mason returned to the discussion of the proposal for Mackenzie. He reviewed
some of the proposed changes from the original plans for the renovation of the station. There will be egress windows
in the upstairs living quarters, a stairwell into the vehicle bay, a pole, and the elevator is on hold right now depending
on further information on requirements. On the first floor PacWest is okay with cutting down their quarters, which gives
space for a turnout room and a hallway for the elevator. The Sheriff's area will be increased and a room available for
interrogation. The bathrooms stay the same except for access to the one for the training room. On the vehicle bay the
three rooms won't be there because they would bump into the Community Center parking lot. It stays at two stories
but with a pole and elevator, four bunkrooms instead of six. Mackenzie will have figures for the next Board meeting
based on the changes; they need the costs for the seismic grant. Moved by Mr. Battles, seconded by Mr. MacCulloch,
to give Chief Mason permission to have Mackenzie increase their contract amount by $5,500 due to changes; motion
carried

6. Actions, if any, from Executive Session. Moved by Mr. Battles, seconded by Mr. Akin, that the proposal discussed
during the Executive Session be sent to the City Council over the signature of Mrs. Eckerman; motion carried.

7. Good of the Order. Mr. Woodruff expressed his concern regarding the letter to the Seal Rock Fire District by Mrs.
Eckerman, which had been sent following the discussion and decision of the Board at their meeting on August 18,
2022. Due to email problems he had not seen the letter before it was sent out. Following further discussion of the
status of the IGA, it was moved by Mr. Battles, seconded by Mr. MacCulloch, that Chief Mason contact Chief Ewing
prior to the next meeting of the Seal Rock Board to ask them to appoint two members to meet with the COC committee
to discuss ways in which the two districts can continue to cooperate; motion carried.

8. Adjournment. There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned at 7:03 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Jan K. Hansen, Recording Secretary

Approved:

Board Chair



2:56 PM

10/17/22

Accrual Basis

Central Oregon Coast Fire & Rescue
Profit & Loss by Class

July through September 2022

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Total

Gross Profit

Expense

Bldg/Property Rsv Equipment Levy Fund Equipment Reserve General Fund TOTAL
4020 - Previous Levied Taxes 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,419.46 3,419.46
6030 - Interest 0.00 0.00 0.00 654.27 654.27
6050 - Miscellaneous 0.00 0.00 0.00 843.95 843.95
6051 - Pac. West Agreement 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,600.00 3,600.00
6062 - Corridor Billing 0.00 0.00 0.00 588.86 588.86
6122 - Beginning Fund - 2022/2023 92,000.00 42,000.00 54,539.00 482,631.57 671,170.57
Income 92,000.00 42,000.00 54,539.00 491,738.11 680,277.11
92,000.00 42,000.00 54,539.00 491,738.11 680,277.11
8000 - Personnel Services
8009 - O ion Medical 0.00 0.00 0.00 250.25 250.25
8010 - Gross Payroll
Base Wages
Year End Accrual 0.00 0.00 0.00 -22,182.24 -22,182.24
Base Wages - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 129,865.40 129,865.40
Total Base Wages 0.00 0.00 0.00 107,683.16 107,683.16
Call Stipend 0.00 0.00 0.00 160.00 160.00
Conflagration 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,930.14 4,930.14
FLSA 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,166.84 2,166.84
OSFM Wages 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,949.42 10,949.42
Overtime Wages 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,939.16 15,939.16
8010 - Gross Payroll - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 28.08 28.08
Total 8010 - Gross Payroll 0.00 0.00 0.00 141,856.80 141,856.80
8011 - Employer FICA 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,852.04 10,852.04
8012 - SUTA 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,826.69 1,826.69
8014 - PERS 0.00 0.00 0.00 34,513.59 34,513.59
8015 - Medical Insurance 0.00 0.00 0.00 25,095.10 25,095.10
8027 - 457 Deferred 0.00 0.00 0.00 220.00 220.00
8029 - Payroll Expenses - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 120.75 120.75
Total 8000 - Personnel Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 214,735.22 214,735.22
8019 - Materials
8023 - Bank Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 56.28 56.28
8031 - Office Supply/Postage 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,097.92 2,097.92
8032 - Legal Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 65.00 65.00
8033 - Lab Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 45.00 45.00
8034 - Medical Supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,228.14 1,228.14
8035 - Minor Equipment 0.00 0.00 0.00 876.47 876.47
8037 - Protective Equipment/Uniforms 0.00 0.00 0.00 89.96 89.96
8040 - Equipment Maintenance 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,388.87 1,388.87
8045 - Building Maintenance
125/145 NW Alsea Hwy 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,236.08 1,236.08
Tidewater 0.00 0.00 0.00 942.16 942.16
5 - Rivers 0.00 0.00 0.00 564.31 564.31
8045 - Building Maintenance - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 62.31 62.31
Total 8045 - Building Maintenance 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,804.86 2,804.86
8050 - Vehicle Fuel 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,289.36 5,289.36
8055 - Vehicle Repair 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,274.15 6,274.15
8056 - Annual Equipment Testing 0.00 0.00 0.00 473.50 473.50
8170 - Prevention/Publi 0.00 0.00 0.00 75.00 75.00
8178 - Department Software/Hardware 0.00 0.00 0.00 701.60 701.60
8180 - Training/Mileage 0.00 0.00 0.00 367.88 367.88
8186 - Volunteer Appreciation 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.83 1,000.83
8187 - Membership/Dues 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,157.96 2,157.96
8190 - Insurance 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,511.33 7,511.33
8200 - Bookkeeping 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,978.39 3,978.39
8236 - Telephone 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,668.93 1,668.93
8237 - Water/Sewer 0.00 0.00 0.00 968.43 968.43
8238 - Electricity/Propane 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,150.88 2,150.88
8239 - Rent 0.00 0.00 0.00 624.99 624.99
8240 - Internet Service 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.50 4.50
8272 - Copier Agreement 0.00 0.00 0.00 538.65 538.65
9092 - Uniforms 0.00 0.00 0.00 428.50 428.50
9096 - Engine/A 0.00 2,946.74 0.00 0.00 2,946.74
Total 8019 - Materials 0.00 2,946.74 0.00 42,767.38 45,714.12

Page 1



2:56 PM

10/17/22

Accrual Basis

Central Oregon Coast Fire & Rescue
Profit & Loss by Class

July through September 2022

9020 - Capital Outlay
9000 - Work-in-Progress

9400 - Ti Station Impr
Total 9000 - Work-in-Progress
Total 9020 - Capital Outlay
Total Expense
Net Ordinary Income

Other Income/Expense
Other Income
5820 - Equipment Reserve Fund Transfer
Interest

Total 5820 - Equipment Reserve Fund Transfer

5825 - Building/Property Rsrv Transfer
Interest

Total 5825 - Building/Property Rsrv Transfer

6033 - Grants
OSFM Wildfire Staffing Grant

Total 6033 - Grants
Total Other Income

Other Expense
8300 - Grant
OSFM Wildfire Staffing

Total 8300 - Grant
Total Other Expense
Net Other Income

Net Income

Bldg/Property Rsv Equipment Levy Fund Equipment Reserve General Fund TOTAL
13,248.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,248.76
13,248.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,248.76
13,248.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,248.76
13,248.76 2,946.74 0.00 257,502.60 273,698.10
78,751.24 39,053.26 54,539.00 234,235.51 406,579.01
0.00 0.00 320.07 0.00 320.07
0.00 0.00 320.07 0.00 320.07
497.47 0.00 0.00 0.00 497.47
497.47 0.00 0.00 0.00 497.47
0.00 0.00 0.00 35,000.00 35,000.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 35,000.00 35,000.00
497.47 0.00 320.07 35,000.00 35,817.54
0.00 0.00 0.00 251.49 251.49
0.00 0.00 0.00 251.49 251.49
0.00 0.00 0.00 251.49 251.49
497.47 0.00 320.07 34,748.51 35,566.05
79,248.71 39,053.26 54,859.07 268,984.02 442,145.06

Page 2



2:56 PM

10/17/22

Accrual Basis

Central Oregon Coast Fire & Rescue

Profit & Loss by Class

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

6030 - Interest
6051 - Pac. West Agreement

Total Income

Gross Profit

Expense

8000 - Personnel Services

8009 -
8010 -

Occupation Medical Evaluations
Gross Payroll

Base Wages

FLSA
OSFM Wages
Overtime Wages

Total 8010 - Gross Payroll

8011

- Employer FICA
8012 -
8014 -
8015 -
8027 -
8029 -

SUTA

PERS

Medical Insurance

457 Deferred

Payroll Expenses - Other

Total 8000 - Personnel Services

8019 - Materials

8023 -
- Office Supply/Postage
8032 -
8033 -
8034 -
8035 -
8037 -
8040 -
8045 -

8031

Bank Fees

Legal Services

Lab Fees

Medical Supplies

Minor Equipment

Protective Equipment/Uniforms
Equipment Maintenance
Building Maintenance

125/145 NW Alsea Hwy

Tidewater

5 - Rivers

8045 - Building Maintenance - Other

Total 8045 - Building Maintenance

8050 -
8055 -
8170 -
8178 -
8180 -
8186 -
8187 -
8190 -
8200 -
8236 -
8237 -
8238 -
8239 -
8240 -
8272 -

Vehicle Fuel

Vehicle Repair
Prevention/Publi
Department Software/Hardware
Training/Mileage
Volunteer Appreciation
Membership/Dues
Insurance
Bookkeeping
Telephone
Water/Sewer
Electricity/Propane
Rent

Internet Service

Copier Agreement

September 2022
Bldg/Property Rsv Equipment Levy Fund Equipment Reserve General Fund TOTAL
0.00 0.00 0.00 180.46 180.46
0.00 0.00 0.00 1,200.00 1,200.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 1,380.46 1,380.46
0.00 0.00 0.00 1,380.46 1,380.46
0.00 0.00 0.00 103.75 103.75
0.00 0.00 0.00 44,162.96 44,162.96
0.00 0.00 0.00 725.70 725.70
0.00 0.00 0.00 7,813.81 7,813.81
0.00 0.00 0.00 5,440.74 5,440.74
0.00 0.00 0.00 58,143.21 58,143.21
0.00 0.00 0.00 4,447.95 4,447.95
0.00 0.00 0.00 662.61 662.61
0.00 0.00 0.00 13,322.40 13,322.40
0.00 0.00 0.00 11,249.58 11,249.58
0.00 0.00 0.00 70.00 70.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 56.00 56.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 88,055.50 88,055.50
0.00 0.00 0.00 52.08 52.08
0.00 0.00 0.00 914.09 914.09
0.00 0.00 0.00 10.00 10.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 15.00 15.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 418.65 418.65
0.00 0.00 0.00 590.95 590.95
0.00 0.00 0.00 89.96 89.96
0.00 0.00 0.00 740.05 740.05
0.00 0.00 0.00 202.91 202.91
0.00 0.00 0.00 95.00 95.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 95.00 95.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 45.65 45.65
0.00 0.00 0.00 438.56 438.56
0.00 0.00 0.00 1,701.01 1,701.01
0.00 0.00 0.00 4,372.36 4,372.36
0.00 0.00 0.00 75.00 75.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 601.98 601.98
0.00 0.00 0.00 214.25 214.25
0.00 0.00 0.00 514.83 514.83
0.00 0.00 0.00 719.32 719.32
0.00 0.00 0.00 2,503.00 2,503.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 1,326.13 1,326.13
0.00 0.00 0.00 858.05 858.05
0.00 0.00 0.00 327.86 327.86
0.00 0.00 0.00 549.85 549.85
0.00 0.00 0.00 208.33 208.33
0.00 0.00 0.00 1.50 1.50
0.00 0.00 0.00 179.55 179.55

Page 1



2:56 PM

10/17/22

Accrual Basis

Central Oregon Coast Fire & Rescue
Profit & Loss by Class

9092 - Uniforms
9096 - Engine/Ambulance Equipment

Total 8019 - Materials

9020 - Capital Outlay
9000 - Work-in-Progress
9400 - Tidewater Station Improvements

Total 9000 - Work-in-Progress
Total 9020 - Capital Outlay
Total Expense
Net Ordinary Income

Other Income/Expense
Other Income
5820 - Equipment Reserve Fund Transfer
Interest

Total 5820 - Equipment Reserve Fund Transfer

5825 - Building/Property Rsrv Transfer
Interest

Total 5825 - Building/Property Rsrv Transfer
Total Other Income

Other Expense
8300 - Grant
OSFM Wildfire Staffing

Total 8300 - Grant
Total Other Expense
Net Other Income

Net Income

September 2022
Bldg/Property Rsv Equipment Levy Fund Equipment Reserve General Fund TOTAL
0.00 0.00 0.00 428.50 428.50
0.00 2,550.90 0.00 0.00 2,550.90
0.00 2,550.90 0.00 17,850.86 20,401.76
9,955.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 9,955.49
9,955.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 9,955.49
9,955.49 0.00 0.00 0.00 9,955.49
9,955.49 2,550.90 0.00 105,906.36 118,412.75
-9,955.49 -2,550.90 0.00 -104,525.90 -117,032.29
0.00 0.00 123.97 0.00 123.97
0.00 0.00 123.97 0.00 123.97
135.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 135.36
135.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 135.36
135.36 0.00 123.97 0.00 259.33
0.00 0.00 0.00 171.49 171.49
0.00 0.00 0.00 171.49 171.49
0.00 0.00 0.00 171.49 171.49
135.36 0.00 123.97 -171.49 87.84
-9,820.13 -2,550.90 123.97 -104,697.39 -116,944.45

Page 2



2:54 PM Central Oregon Coast Fire & Rescue

10117122 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual (All Funds)
Accrual Basis July through September 2022
Jul - Sep 22 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income
4010 - Current Levied Taxes
Operating Levy
Permanent Levy

Total 4010 - Current Levied Taxes

4015 - Equipment Replacement Levy
4020 - Previous Levied Taxes

6030 - Interest

6050 - Miscellaneous

6051 - Pac. West Agreement

6062 - Corridor Billing

6090 - Sale of Surplus Property
6120 - Conflagration

6122 - Beginning Fund - 2022/2023

Total Income

Gross Profit

Expense
8000 - Personnel Services

8009 - Occupation Medical Evaluations

8010 - Gross Payroll
Base Wages
Year End Accrual
Base Wages - Other

Total Base Wages

Call Stipend

Conflagration

FLSA

OSFM Wages

Overtime Wages

8010 - Gross Payroll - Other

Total 8010 - Gross Payroll

8011 - Employer FICA

8012 - SUTA

8014 - PERS

8015 - Medical Insurance

8016 - Workmans Comp

8025 - Recruitment & Retention
8027 - 457 Deferred

8029 - Payroll Expenses - Other

Total 8000 - Personnel Services

8019 - Materials
8023 - Bank Fees
8031 - Office Supply/Postage
8032 - Legal Services
8033 - Lab Fees
8034 - Medical Supplies
8035 - Minor Equipment
8036 - Communications Equipment

8037 - Protective Equipment/Uniforms

8040 - Equipment Maintenance

0.00 536,408.77 -536,408.77 0.0%
0.00 341,788.64 -341,788.64 0.0%
0.00 878,197.41 -878,197.41 0.0%
0.00 105,592.28 -105,592.28 0.0%
3,419.46 13,000.00 -9,580.54 26.3%
654.27
843.95
3,600.00 14,400.00 -10,800.00 25.0%
588.86 10,000.00 -9,411.14 5.9%
0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%
0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%
671,170.57 671,170.57 0.00 100.0%
680,277.11 1,702,360.26 -1,022,083.15 40.0%
680,277.11 1,702,360.26 -1,022,083.15 40.0%
250.25 4,000.00 -3,749.75 6.3%
-22,182.24
129,865.40 431,201.96 -301,336.56
107,683.16 431,201.96 -323,518.80 25.0%
160.00
4,930.14
2,166.84 6,000.00 -3,833.16 36.1%
10,949.42
15,939.16 25,000.00 -9,060.84 63.8%
28.08
141,856.80 462,201.96 -320,345.16 30.7%
10,852.04 35,358.45 -24,506.41 30.7%
1,826.69 8,361.75 -6,535.06 21.8%
34,513.59 65,011.93 -30,498.34 53.1%
25,095.10 95,040.00 -69,944.90 26.4%
0.00 12,500.00 -12,500.00 0.0%
0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.0%
220.00 750.00 -530.00 29.3%
120.75 105.00 15.75 115.0%
214,735.22 685,329.09 -470,593.87 31.3%
56.28 700.00 -643.72 8.0%
2,097.92 8,000.00 -5,902.08 26.2%
65.00 8,000.00 -7,935.00 0.8%
45.00 250.00 -205.00 18.0%
1,228.14 5,000.00 -3,771.86 24.6%
876.47 2,000.00 -1,123.53 43.8%
0.00 14,000.00 -14,000.00 0.0%
89.96 5,500.00 -5,410.04 1.6%
1,388.87 2,750.00 -1,361.13 50.5%

Page 1



2:54 PM
10/17/22

Accrual Basis

Central Oregon Coast Fire & Rescue
Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual (All Funds)
July through September 2022

8045 -

Building Maintenance

125/145 NW Alsea Hwy

Tidewater

5 - Rivers

8045 - Building Maintenance - Other

Total 8045 - Building Maintenance

8050 -
8055 -
8056 -
8170 -
8172 -
8178 -
8179 -
8180 -
8186 -
8187 -
8190 -
8200 -
8210 -
8235 -
8236 -
8237 -
8238 -
8239 -
8240 -
8271
8272 -
9056 -
9092 -
9095 -
9096 -
9300 -

Vehicle Fuel

Vehicle Repair

Annual Equipment Testing
Prevention/Publi

Public Eduction
Department Software/Hardware
Subscriptions
Training/Mileage
Volunteer Appreciation
Membership/Dues
Insurance

Bookkeeping

Audit

Dispatch Service
Telephone

Water/Sewer
Electricity/Propane

Rent

Internet Service

- Oregon Ethics Commission

Copier Agreement

CERT Team

Uniforms

Rescue Boat
Engine/Ambulance Equipment
Simulcast Network - Maint. Agre

Total 8019 - Materials

8400 - Operating Contingency
9020 - Capital Outlay

8047 -
8195 -
8250 -
8925 -
9000 -

Self Contained Breathing Appara
Interest Expense

Water Rescue

DI/S - Principal

Work-in-Progress

9103 - Five Rivers Property & Improvem
9400 - Tidewater Station Improvements

Total 9000 - Work-in-Progress

9045 -
9049 -
9093 -
9098 -
9099 -

Structure Gear (Protective Gear
Boat Facility & Related
Technical Rescue Equipment
Fuel Depot

Workout/Training Equipment

Total 9020 - Capital Outlay

Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income

Jul - Sep 22 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
1,236.08
942.16
564.31
62.31 44,500.00 -44,437.69 0.1%
2,804.86 44,500.00 -41,695.14 6.3%
5,289.36 17,000.00 -11,710.64 31.1%
6,274.15 15,000.00 -8,725.85 41.8%
473.50 10,000.00 -9,526.50 4.7%
75.00
0.00 1,300.00 -1,300.00 0.0%
701.60 2,000.00 -1,298.40 35.1%
0.00 5,900.00 -5,900.00 0.0%
367.88 3,740.00 -3,372.12 9.8%
1,000.83 7,900.00 -6,899.17 12.7%
2,157.96 3,200.00 -1,042.04 67.4%
7,511.33 18,040.00 -10,528.67 41.6%
3,978.39 16,000.00 -12,021.61 24.9%
0.00 8,500.00 -8,500.00 0.0%
0.00 22,330.00 -22,330.00 0.0%
1,568.93 5,900.00 -4,331.07 26.6%
968.43 3,600.00 -2,631.57 26.9%
2,150.88 14,400.00 -12,249.12 14.9%
624.99 3,700.00 -3,075.01 16.9%
4.50 1,900.00 -1,895.50 0.2%
0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.0%
538.65 2,250.00 -1,711.35 23.9%
0.00 1,500.00 -1,500.00 0.0%
428.50 2,000.00 -1,571.50 21.4%
0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%
2,946.74 54,000.00 -51,053.26 5.5%
0.00 4,400.00 -4,400.00 0.0%
45,714.12 316,760.00 -271,045.88 14.4%
0.00 20,000.00 -20,000.00 0.0%
0.00 3,200.00 -3,200.00 0.0%
0.00 2,056.53 -2,056.53 0.0%
0.00 4,990.00 -4,990.00 0.0%
0.00 19,721.59 -19,721.59 0.0%
0.00 7,500.00 -7,500.00 0.0%
13,248.76 20,000.00 -6,751.24 66.2%
13,248.76 27,500.00 -14,251.24 48.2%
0.00 6,800.00 -6,800.00 0.0%
0.00 38,000.00 -38,000.00 0.0%
0.00 4,500.00 -4,500.00 0.0%
0.00 15,000.00 -15,000.00 0.0%
0.00 3,100.00 -3,100.00 0.0%
13,248.76 124,868.12 -111,619.36 10.6%
273,698.10 1,146,957.21 -873,259.11 23.9%
406,579.01 555,403.05 -148,824.04 73.2%

Page 2



2:54 PM
10/17/22

Accrual Basis

Central Oregon Coast Fire & Rescue

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual (All Funds)
July through September 2022

Other Income/Expense
Other Income
5820 - Equipment Reserve Fund Transfer
Interest
5820 - Equipment Reserve Fund Transfer - Other

Total 5820 - Equipment Reserve Fund Transfer

5825 - Building/Property Rsrv Transfer
Interest
5825 - Building/Property Rsrv Transfer - Other

Total 5825 - Building/Property Rsrv Transfer

6033 - Grants
OSFM Wildfire Staffing Grant

Total 6033 - Grants
Total Other Income

Other Expense
8300 - Grant
OSFM Wildfire Staffing

Total 8300 - Grant

9200 - Equipment Reserve Fund
9205 - Building/Property Rsrv Fund

Total Other Expense
Net Other Income

Net Income

Jul - Sep 22 $ Over Budget % of Budget
320.07
0.00 45,461.00 -45,461.00 0.0%
320.07 45,461.00 -45,140.93 0.7%
497.47
0.00 33,000.00 -33,000.00 0.0%
497.47 33,000.00 -32,502.53 1.5%
35,000.00
35,000.00
35,817.54 78,461.00 -42,643.46 45.7%
251.49
251.49
0.00 45,461.00 -45,461.00 0.0%
0.00 33,000.00 -33,000.00 0.0%
251.49 78,461.00 -78,209.51 0.3%
35,566.05 0.00 35,566.05 100.0%
442,145.06 555,403.05 -113,257.99 79.6%

Page 3



2:53 PM

10/17/22
Accrual Basis

Central Oregon Coast Fire & Rescue

Balance Sheet
As of September 30, 2022

Sep 30, 22
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
LGIP
Building/Property Reserve Accou 69,669.70
Equipment Reserve Account 82,025.31
Public Funds
Equipment Levy Fund 162,127.40
Public Funds - Other -60,272.39
Total Public Funds 101,855.01
Total LGIP 253,550.02
Oregon Coast Bank Public Funds 64,228.45
Oregon Coast Operating Account 9,278.55
Petty Cash 400.00
Total Checking/Savings 327,457.02
Accounts Receivable
Property Taxes 47,666.33
Total Accounts Receivable 47,666.33
Other Current Assets
Interfund Receivable 183,125.93
1400 - Prepaid Expenses
Computer Support 146.53
Equipment Maintenance Agreement 458.75
Insurance 4,424.67
Internet Service 229.41
Licenses & Permits 45.00
Memberships 1,947.76
P.O. Box Rental 83.34
Storage Lease 625.01
Subscriptions 789.19
1400 - Prepaid Expenses - Other 48,861.49
Total 1400 - Prepaid Expenses 57,611.15
1710 - Deferred OF - Contib. After M.D 480,333.00
Total Other Current Assets 721,070.08
Total Current Assets 1,096,193.43

Page 1



2:53 PM

10/17/22
Accrual Basis

Central Oregon Coast Fire & Rescue

Balance Sheet
As of September 30, 2022

Fixed Assets

1600 - Capital Assets

1650 - Allowance For Depreciation

Total Fixed Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

2000 -
2210 -

Accounts Payable
Interfund Payable

Total Accounts Payable

Credit Cards

2104 -

Oregon Coast Bank Visa

Total Credit Cards

Other Current Liabilities

1700 -
2110 -
2150 -
2201 -
2202 -
2203 -
2204 -
2205 -
2206 -
2207 -

2211

2301

Net Pension Asset

Direct Deposit Liabilities

Union Dues, IAFF Local 4619
Deferred Revenue

Compensated Absences

941 Tax Payable

SIT Payable

SUTA Payable

Workers' Benefit Fund

457 Deferred Compensation Payab

- Garnishments Payable
2222 -
- Capital Lease Obligation
2310 -

Deferred Revenue Contra

Deferred IF - Investment Return

Total Other Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Long Term Liabilities
2500 - Capital Lease Obligation - LT

Total Long Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Sep 30, 22

1,5603,537.65
-719,5635.75

784,001.90

1,880,195.33

21,204.90
183,125.95

204,330.85

-5,399.18

-5,399.18

618,847.00
9,336.94
-248.50
37,399.70
14,332.92
298.86
684.00
106.03
13.62
240.00
650.60
-41,147.00
82,144.89
272,197.00

994,856.06

1,193,787.73

72,849.78

72,849.78

1,266,637.51

Page 2



2:53 PM Central Oregon Coast Fire & Rescue

10117122 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of September 30, 2022
Sep 30, 22
Equity
1110 - Retained Earnings -65,238.34
4100 - Investment In Fixed Assets 221,756.83
4120 - F/B - Depreciation -75,184.04
4400 - F/B - Capital Asset Additions 180,583.45
4401 - F/B Capital Asset Disposals -16,625.00
4500 - Fund Balance-Comp Abs -6,504.47
4560 - GASB 34 Fund Balance -12,501.00
4600 - GAAP - Pension Income -111,175.00
4620 - F/B -Deferred Revenue 5,734.93
4621 - Fund Balance
Unreserved
Beginning Fund - FY 2022/2023 -671,170.57
Total Unreserved -671,170.57
4000 - FB Fire 527,754.05
4510 - FB Debt Proceeds -72,849.78
4511 - FB Debt Payments 13,5675.11
4621 - Fund Balance - Other 253,256.59
Total 4621 - Fund Balance 50,565.40
Net Income 442,145.06
Total Equity 613,557.82
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 1,880,195.33

Page 3



To: Central Coast Fire & Rescue Board of Directors
From: Chief Jamie Mason

Date: 10/17/2022

Subject: Board Report

CHIEF’S REPORT

Makenzie Group — The District will provide a drawing of the changes to the facility for an estimate and
review by Makenzie Group.

Civil Service Committee — The committee met on September 27" the rules are completed, and the
committee will meet again in December in accordance with the 90-day meeting rule if there is any
business to be discussed. The rules are now ready for Board approval.

Grant Funding — The following are grants that we are researching, applying for, or have applied for:

* Central Coast Fire & Rescue — We will resume contact with the FEMA grant programs contacts
for the following grants:
o Building Resilience and Infrastructure in Communities (BRIC) — In order to be eligible
for BRIC funding the District needs to be added as an addendum to the County
Mitigation Plan. We are working with County EM to get this accomplished for the next
round of BRIC funding opportunities.
= Oregon Seismic Grant — In progress.
o Makenzie is working on the grant as well as the updated drawing and assessment.
= Operational FEMA Grants: FEMA’s deadlines have been extended to allow for the
completion of grant awards.
o Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER) Last updated 9/21
o Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG) Last updated 9/28
o Prevention and Preparedness Grant no new awards as of yet
= Operational State Grants/Opportunities:
o OSFM Engine Program: Due November 30th
o FEPP Surplus: Applied, waiting for resource availability
= OSFM Staffing Grant
o The Fire Marshal’s Office released a funding opportunity for hiring two Firefighters and
up to two Fire Prevention Personnel for a three-year period. Application is in progress
for two Firefighters and one Fire Prevention person.

Boat 72 — We are still planning to place the Boat for rapid response at the port. purchase record keeping.
The expectation is power will be installed this fall/winter. After power is installed the lift for the boat can
be installed.

Automatic Aid Agreement — I met with Yachats Leadership on Monday the 17". We have reviewed the
previous agreement last revised in 2011. A Draft update is being reviewed for approval to be signed by
all Agencies, hopefully, in November.



2022 Operations Report — The District has not released an operational report in the past few years. A
Draft is available for review to be provided to the public soon. The Draft incorporates 2021 and 2022 up
through September.

Action Items — The following items were identified with the following deadlines during the District goal-
setting workshop.

1. Five Rivers Water Supply — 22-23 Budget
2. Jet Dock Installation Plan — 22-23 Budget
3. Engine Equipment Continuity List — 22-23 Budget



CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7

CIVIL SERVICE RULES

As approved by the Civil Service Commission

September 27, 2022

And by the Board of Directors

October 20, 2022

Louise Solliday, Chair Reda Eckerman, President
Civil Service Commission Board of Directors

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 1




Table of Contents

HIE] o1 (o] €e] 0] =T 1] K3 OO PPNt 2
2 RN 5
PURPOSE OF RULES ... ceevii ittt s e et e e e e ete e e e st e e e e saaaeeessaaanseesasanseesssannserssnsnsessesnnnssensnnneessennnes 5
RULE [l ettt ieeie st eee ettt e e e ee e et e et e e eaee e ea e sanaseasa e eaanseeesnsesnnsaessnssannsessnsessnsesnseensnesssnsessnnnsssnssssnneseneeesnnenen 6
DEFINITION OF TERIMS .ottt ettt ettt e e ee e e e e s et s e eeabeeeesaasaseesaasaeeesansseeesessasseesssassessenanseesssnnsessssnnnns 6
2 0 R 10
ADOPTION AND AMENDMENT OF RULES ...ttt et e eeetie e e vaabseeseaaaseseannaessasanseessssanseensnen 10
SECTION 1  ADOPTION OF CIVIL SERVICE RULES ....cuvuiiiiiiiiieiieiin ettt et se et e e saaes e s saana s e sannan e 10
SECTION 2 EFFECT OF ADOPTION UPON INCUMBENT EMPLOYEES ....ccovvvieiiiiiieeieeieeccieeeecree e 10
SECTION 3 AMENDMENT OF RULES ....covtiiiiiiieeiieie et et eeset e e se s e srabeeesrabaeessannnnsensnnanans 10
SECTION 4  APPLICATION OF RULES ..et ettt evete s e e et s s e seba s e e seaaaseesanasesannaseeenannes 10
SECTION5 PERSONNEL RULES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ....cctttiiiiiiiieeieerieeecetreeererieeeeenni e seenanes 10
R IR Y 11
DISTRICT SERVICE ..coveeiiieeiiiie ettt ettt ettt e ettt e et s et e e e seba s e seaba e eeesabbaseseasassesessaansessssansessssansesnsnneeersrransernennnes 11
SECTION 1 CLASSIFIED SERVICE ....cetiiieiii ittt ettt et et st e et e e s e e st ee st esaanesebness b e ssanessnnseeses 11
SECTION 2 EXEMPT SERVICE ....cuu ittt ettt et e et et eeeb e e e b e rea e se b s eeaanessaneesaaesbaessnnas 11
RULE Vet ettt e ettt e et e et e s bt e e e et e e s b e s bb e s aba e saas e s bba e e saa e saanss s sbanssanesssnsersnseessnsersnsersnns 12
ORGANIZATION FOR PERSONNEL ADMINISTRATION .ottt eet et e e et e s et e e saae e reeessaeeees 12
SECTION 1  CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION . .cuuiitiiiiiiiiiiee ettt et et e et e e sbeeeaaeeesbsesaneeesneeeens 12
SECTION 2 COMMISSION CHAIR . eei ittt et e et et e sab e e st e se e ee e saasesaaneresaeesnneesnns 12
SECTION 3 MEETINGS OF THE COMMISSION ...uitiiiiiiiiiiiiieiec ettt et et e st e v e e e e saa e e s eeseas 12
SECTION 4  REMOVAL OF COMMISSIONERS ....uoiiiiiiiieeeee ettt et e e e e e e b e s e e b e eaanas 12
SECTION 5 FILLING OF VACANCY ..ottt ettt et e et et e et e e e aee e st e saaa e seaaseeaaeestnereaasessaeesnnas 12
LU I YA TSP 13
CLASSIFICATION PLAN .ottt ettt et e ettt e e et e e e e e e e sab e s e e saaeesabaesbaasesanseranssssnsessnnersaeesnneres 13
SECTION 1 MAINTENANGCE OF PLAN ...outiitii ittt ettt e e et et e et e e sa e e sban e sabaeesaneesanesannes 13
SECTION 2 AMENDIMENT OF PLAN . ittt et et e et e e et e e sa e e sba e sabeesaneesaaesannes 13
SECTION 3 CLASSIFICATION OF POSITIONS ...coeniiiiiie ettt e e et e saa e e aa e e s e saan e eaanes 13
SECTION 4 USE OF CLASS TITLE ... ittt ettt e et et e e e et esbb e sabaeesaaeesanesabnsssanesenesnnnes 14
RULE VL ettt e et e et ettt e e e te e et e seaa e eeaa e eaneseasassasnaesasnsessnsesannnsssnssssnnesssnssssnsesennesssnsessnnessnneesnnssssnns 14
APPLICATIONS AND EXAMINATIONS . ... ettt ettt ettt eeseeteeeerastseerastaeeeastanseesssansesssssnseerasssnserssnnnsernenes 14
SECTION 1  EXAMINATION ANNOUNCEMENTS. .. .ottt reeee e eeeae e e eeraae e e e sesea s e seasaeeraenans 15
SECTION 2 ELIGIBILITY TO COMPETE IN EXAMINATIONS ...ttt et eert e e sena e e saanaes 15
SECTION 3 APPLICATIONS ... ettt ettt e et e e e et e e e e et e e s e s s s eseasa s esessanssessesansessesnnssennsnnseesersnns 15
SECTION 4  ADMISSION TO EXAMINATIONS ..coveeiiiiitie ittt e eesene e e ee e e e e srab e s s esaaaeeesaanans 16
SECTION 5  DISQUALIFICATION OF APPLICANTS ..ottt ittt e et ee ettt e eeerre e e e seneeesaanassessannnsesesnnans 16
SECTION 6  EXAMINATION ADMINISTRATION. .. uiitttttieiiieiiiieeritiinee et eeertiieeeerenneeseesseeersrsnneeersnnnseersnnnnes 17
SECTION 7 POSTPONEMENT OR CANCELLATION OF EXAMINATIONS ..ottt 17
SECTION 8 CHARACTER OF EXAMINATIONS ....ouiiettie ettt ettt eeseereeeesaabeeseesaneeesansnnssesnsnnseessnnnnns 17

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 2



SECTION 9  RATING OF EXAMINATIONS ...cciiiiiiiiiiiiii ittt 18

SECTION 10 NOTIFICATION OF EXAMINATION RESULTS ...viiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciiccciec e 18
SECTION 11 PREFERENCE FOR VETERANS . .....oiiiitiiiiiii et 18
SECTION 12 VOLUNTEER PREFERENCE ......oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii ittt 19
R PP 20
LR I =15 PP PP 20
SECTION 1  ESTABLISHMENT OF REGISTERS......cciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii et 20
SECTION 2 KINDS OF REGISTERS .....oiiiiiitiiiiiiie ittt 20
SECTION 3  ORDER OF NAMES ON ENTRANCE REGISTERS.......otiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiteeccieeeeee e 20
SECTION 4  DURATION OF REGISTERS .....otiiiiiiiiiitiee ettt st s s s 21
SECTIONS5  REMOVAL OF NAMES FROM LISTS ...ceiiiiiiiiiiietitee ettt ittt s 21
SECTION 6  RESTORATION OF NAMES TO ELIGIBLE PERSON(S) LISTS....coiiieiieiieeeeeiee et 22
SECTION 7  AVAILABILITY OF ELIGIBLES PERSON(S) «euutteuteenieeeteeiieniienieeiee sttt ettt e seeesee e 22
RULE DXttt ettt e sttt e e s e s s bbbt e e e e s s s b e b e e e e e e s st e e et e e e e s s s e br e e e ee e e s 23
CERTIFICATION AND APPOINTMENT ...ttt ettt e s e e s s 23
SECTION 1 FILLING VACANT POSITIONS ...ooiiiiiiiiiiiitiee ettt ettt s ssren e e e s 23
SECTION 2 CERTIFICATION OF ELIGIBLES PERSON(S) ..eeveeiuteeiienieeenieesiieeiee ittt 23
SECTION 3 KINDS OF APPOINTIMENTS ...oitiiiiiiii ittt s s s e e s s s 24
SECTION 4 TRANSFERS ...t e e e ete e e s s e b bt e e e e s e s e sans 24
RULE Xttt ettt ettt e e e st e e e e s s e bbb e e e e e e e s b e b et e e e e et e e e e e e e et e s b araeeee e e e s 25
PROBATIONARY PERIOD ....eitiiiiiiiiiiiittiie ettt sttt e e e e et et e s e s s s sssbbae s e e e e s s e s sssbaaeeeeesenas 25
SECTION 1 PURPOSE ...ttt ettt e e e s s b e et te e e s s e s ssnbbe e e s esssesans 26
SECTION 2 DURATION OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD .....cccuviiiiiiiiiiiiiieciiicc e 26
SECTION 3 DISMISSAL DURING ENTRANCE PROBATIONARY PERIOD ......cccceivviiiiiiiiiieiiiiiceeice e 26
SECTION 4  UNSATISFACTORY PERFORMANCE DURING PROMOTIONAL PROBATIONARY PERIOD........ 26
SECTION'5  REGULAR STATUS ...ciiiiiiiiiii ettt s s srrn e 26
SECTION 6 REMOVAL FROM ELIGIBILITY REGISTER ....cciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiitie et 26
R X PP 27
SEPARATION IN GOOD STANDING ....ooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ittt et e s sbbas e s ane e e saes 27
SECTION1  REDUCTION IN FORCE.....cciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ittt s s sn s 28
SECTION 2 RETURN OF NAMES OF LAID-OFF EMPLOYEES TO THE ELIGIBLE Person(s) LISTS.................. 28
R X PP 29
DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS. ...ciiitititiiiiie ettt a e s st ba e s s sab e e e s sabb s e e s s eab e e e e s bbae e s snnas 29
SECTION 1  CAUSES FOR DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS......cciiiiiiiiiiiiieiriiceire et 29
SECTION 2 PROCEDURE FOR TAKING DISCIPLINARY ACTION ....ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiecinec e 30
R X PP 31
APPEALS, HEARINGS, AND INVESTIGATIONS ...coiiiiiiiiiieiee ettt et eere e e s e 31
SECTION 1 APPEALS ..ot e e e s e e s s bt e et e s e e s b erbee e e e s sssnnnne 31
SECTION 2 DISCIPLINARY HEARINGS. ... ..ottt ettt aee e s s 32
SECTION 4 COMMISSION FINDINGS .. .ttt ettt e s sssa e s ee s s 32
SECTIONS5  APPEAL TO CIRCUIT COURT ..otttiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt e e ree s ee s s s sissaes e e s s 33
RULE XIV ettt e e e e s e e s s et e et e s e e s e b bbb e s e e e e e s s b b baaeeeeesssanssaaaneeeesens 34
RECORDS AND REPORTS ...ttt ettt sttt e e s e e s b b e st e e e s s sssaaa e e e e e st e s snssnnataeeeeeas 34
SECTION 1 ROSTER ...ttt et st e e e s s e b e e et e e e s s e b araeeses s s e snnnnes 34

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 3



SECTION 2 REPORTS TO THE COMMISSION ....coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicceicc it 34

SECTION 3 DESTRUCTION OF RECORDS......cccctitiiiiiiiiiiitiiin ittt 34
SECTION 4 PUBLIC RECORDS......cciiititiiiiiiiiii ittt e e s sanra s 34
R PP 35
PROHIBITIONS AND PENALTIES .....evtiiiiiiiiie ittt e b e e e e s baa s 35
SECTION1  PROHIBITED CONDUCT GENERALLY......ottiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ittt 35
SECTION 2 POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND ACTIVITIES ..coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 35
SECTION 3 PENALTIES ..ottt et r e s sbba e e s s aae e s 35

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 4



RULE I

PURPOSE OF RULES

The purpose of these rules is to implement provisions of Civil Service for the employees of Central
Oregon Coast Fire & Rescue District #7. These rules represent the sole Civil Service policies for
Central Oregon Coast Fire & Rescue District #7 provided by ORS 242.704 and achieve for the District
the following objectives:

A. To establish a system of personnel administration based on merit principles and scientific
methods, governing the appointment, tenure, promotion, layoff, removal, and discipline of its
officers and employees, and other incidents of employment, and to provide an exemption from
ORS 242.702 through 242.824 as provided in ORS 242.704.

B. To promote and increase economy and efficiency.

C. To establish and maintain a uniform plan of classification based upon the relative duties and
responsibilities of positions in the service of Central Oregon Coast Fire & Rescue District #7.

D. To provide an equal opportunity to all qualified persons to gain employment on a basis of
demonstrated merit and fithess to be ascertained by open recruitment and competitive
examinations.

E. To develop a program of recruitment and advancement that will make a career in the District
service attractive to persons who possess both ability and integrity.

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 5



RULE II

DEFINITION OF TERMS

As used in these rules, unless the context requires otherwise:

A.

"Absence" means a circumstance in which a regular appointed employee is not present due to
vacation, sick leave, or other types of leave, or due to temporary or provisional appointment, or
transfer to another position when the absent employee is expected to return to said position
after some time.

"Act" means the State Civil Service Law for Fire Fighters. (ORS 242.702 to 242.990) and
specifically, ORS 242.704 under which section the establishment of these rules by the Civil
Service Commission is based.

"Allocation" means the assignment of an individual position to an appropriate classification
based on the kind, difficulty, and responsibility of the work performed in the position.

"Appointing Power" means the Fire Chief, or the Board of Directors of the District vested with
the authority to appoint to any Civil Service position.

"Appointment" means all means of selection.

"Civil Service" means the civil service system established by these rules.

"Chief Examiner" means the person appointed by the Commission to administer the
examinations and any other aspect of the Civil Service program assigned by the Commission.
The Chief Examiner may serve as the secretary to the Commission.

"Class" or "Classification" means a group of positions in the classified service sufficiently alike
in duties, authority, and responsibilities that the same qualifications may reasonably be required

for, and the same schedule of pay can be equitably applied to all positions in the group.

"Class Specification" means the written description of a class containing a title, statement of
duties, authority, and responsibilities and the required minimum qualifications for the class.

"Classified Service" means all positions in the District service for which the appointment of
employees is subject to the Act and these Rules.

"Commission" means the Civil Service Commission created under the Act.
"Commissioner" means a Civil Service Commission member.

"Demotion" means the appointing power reducing an employee to a lower grade or rank either
by employee’s request or for cause.

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 6



AA.

"Dismissal" means removal by the appointing power from a position or service within the Fire
District either by employee’s request or for cause.

"District" means the Central Oregon Coast Fire & Rescue District #7.

"Employees" means persons whose principal duties consist of preventing or combating fire or
preventing the loss of life or property from fire, except those listed as exempt.

"Entrance Register" means a list of persons who have been found qualified by an entrance
examination for appointment to a position in a particular class.

"Entrance Examination" means an examination for positions in a particular class, admission to
which is not limited to persons employed by the District.

"Examiner" means a person appointed by the Chief Examiner to conduct examinations.
Such examiner shall not be a classified employee of a rank equal to or less than the rank
subject to the examination. Specifically, an examiner does not include classified employees
serving as monitors, proctors, or performing other ministerial functions.

"Governing Body" means the Board of Directors of Central Oregon Coast Fire & Rescue District
#7.

"Layoff" means a separation from the service because of a shortage of funds or materials,
abolishment of a position, or for other reasons not reflecting discredit on an employee and for
reasons outside his/her control.

"Military Leave" means the leave of absence granted to employees entering/serving the armed
forces of the United States.

"Personnel Action" means any action taken regarding appointment, compensation, promotion,
demotion, transfer, layoff, dismissal, or any other action affecting the status of employment.

"Personnel Rules" means the personnel rules adopted by order of the Board of Directors
relating to hiring, discipline, attendance, compensation, leave, retirement, or any other factor of
employment.

"Political" in such terms as "political, religious or racial reasons", "political office", and "political
party or candidate" shall be understood as referring to partisan politics and contested
nomination or election to public office only.

"Position" means any office, place, or appointment.
"Probationary Period" means a working examination period of twelve months during which an

employee is required to demonstrate the actual performance of the duties, fithess for the
position.

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 7



AB.

AC.

AD.

AE.

AF.

AG.

AH.

Al.

AJ.

AK.

AL.

AM.

"Promotion" means a transfer of an employee from a position in one class to a position in
another class having a higher maximum salary rate.

"Promotion Register" means a list of names of person presently in the employ of the District
who have been found qualified by promotional examination for appointment to a position in a
particular class.

"Promotional Examination" means an examination that is limited to employees who hold regular
or probationary status and have held a position or positions in other classes for not less than six
months.

"Provisional Appointment" means an appointment to a position, limited to three months, in the
absence of names of qualified candidates on the register or registers for the class, of a person
meeting the minimum qualifications specified for the class.

"Public Notice" means written or printed notification conspicuously posted on official bulletin
boards in all areas of employment, published in a newspaper of general circulation in the
District, directed to department heads, with a copy to the secretary of the District for District
records.

"Reclassification” means a change in the allocation of an individual position by raising it to a
higher class, reducing it to a lower class, or moving it to another class at the same level based
on significant changes in the kind, difficulty, or responsibility of the work performed in such
position.

"Regular Employee" means either an employee who has been appointed to a position in accor-
dance with the rules of the Civil Service Commission and who has completed a probationary
period, or an employee who acquired status through appointment to a position in the classified
service on or before 9/27/2022.

"Rules" means the Civil Service rules adopted by the Civil Service Commission as provided by
the Act.

"Suspension" means a temporary removal from duty, with or without pay, of an employee for
disciplinary purposes or the purpose of investigation of accusations brought against the
employee.

"Temporary Appointment" means a non-status appointment to assure the continuation of
required work.

"Termination" means the involuntary cessation of employment with the Fire District for the
cause.

"Transfer" means any change of an employee from one position to another in the same class. A
normal rotational move is not to be considered a transfer.

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 8



AN. "Vacancy" means a position newly created and not filled or a position that is no longer occupied
by its incumbent due to separation from the service, promotion, demotion, or transfer, and the
incumbent is not expected to return.

AO. "Voluntary Demotion" means a demotion requested by an employee to retain employees when
layoff from a position is imminent or for other reasons where the action is still entirely voluntary
on the part of the employee.

AP. "Workday" or "Working Day" means a calendar day unless otherwise specified.

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 9



RULE III

ADOPTION AND AMENDMENT OF RULES

SECTION 1 ADOPTION OF CIVIL SERVICE RULES

Rules relating to the administration of the Civil Service Act shall be adopted by the Commission only after
a public hearing open to any citizen, officer, or employee of the District. Five or more days of public notice
of such hearing shall be given, setting forth the place and the time of the hearing and the purpose for
which it is called. Rules adopted by the Commission shall become effective on a date specified by the
Commission and shall be posted on all official bulletin boards of the District.

SECTION 2 EFFECT OF ADOPTION UPON INCUMBENT EMPLOYEES

Within one day after the adoption of the civil service, all persons employed in a position subject to civil
service and who have been employed by the District for at least six months and who have otherwise
passed all probationary requirements of the District shall be immediately placed in their existing positions
as classified by civil service as if they were a regular employee. The appointing authority shall file a list of
names of such persons with the civil service commission, including their names, residence, occupation,
length of continuous service, and compensation.

SECTION 3 AMENDMENT OF RULES

A request for a change in the Civil Service Rules may be submitted at any time by the Board of Directors,
Fire Chief, a department head, employee, or other interested parties in a written communication to the
Commission indicating the proposed change and the reasons, therefore. After the necessary study, the
Commission may amend the Civil Service Rules as it believes proper. The procedure for the adoption of
rules in Section 1 shall also apply to amendments to the rules.

SECTION 4 APPLICATION OF RULES

Any personnel action taken before the official adoption of new or amended rules shall be governed by the
rules in effect at the time of the action and shall not be affected by the proposed new or amended rules
unless such rule provided a retroactive effect.

SECTION 5 PERSONNEL RULES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Personnel rules relating to salaries, wages, leave, attendance, hours of work, holidays, retirement, or any
other factor of employment having direct budgetary implications in the classified and exempt service shall
be established and administered by the governing body in conformance with laws about such matters.
This is mentioned so there is no confusion as to the limits of these rules. Rules governing the general
conduct of employees, work regulations, and assignment schedules shall be adopted and administered
by the governing body. Such rules shall be readily available for review by employees.

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 10



RULE IV

DISTRICT SERVICE

SECTION 1 CLASSIFIED SERVICE

The classified service shall include all positions now existing or hereafter created in the District service
and not specifically exempted by these rules. Every position in the classified service shall be filled
following procedures provided in these rules.

SECTION 2 EXEMPT SERVICE

The exempt service shall include the following positions:

o owp»

—Lemm

Positions on the Board of Directors

Positions on the Civil Service Commission

Persons employed as professional consultants on a fee basis to provide special or technical
assistance

Members of special boards, Commissions, or committees appointed by the Board of Directors,
who serve without compensation

Volunteer members of the District.

Fire Chief

Temporary employees/Volunteer trainees

Clerical employees of the District.

Any employee whose principal duties do not consist of preventing or combating fire, or
preventing the loss of life or property from fire

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 11



RULE V

ORGANIZATION FOR PERSONNEL ADMINISTRATION

SECTION 1 CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION

The Civil Service Commission consists of three members appointed or confirmed by the governing
body of the District for a 4-year term, a Chief Examiner, and such assistants as may be necessary. All
actions of the Chief Examiner shall be subject to review and approval or disapproval of the
Commission. No employee, agent, volunteer, or member of the governing body is eligible to serve on
the Civil Service Commission. Commissioners serve without compensation.

SECTION 2 COMMISSION CHAIR

The Commission shall elect a chair at the first meeting of each fiscal year.

SECTION 3 MEETINGS OF THE COMMISSION

The Commission shall hold such meetings as may be required for the proper discharge of its duties
with a meeting every 90 days (if there is the business to perform) and such additional meetings as are
requested by any Commission member. Any person subject to civil service may request a special
meeting of the Commission, the request will be granted if good cause is shown. Two members of the
Commission shall constitute a quorum, and the votes of any two members of such Commission
concurring shall be sufficient for the decision of all matters and the transaction of all business to be
decided or transacted by the commission. In any event, there shall be at least one Civil Service
Commission meeting each year.

SECTION 4 REMOVAL OF COMMISSIONERS

The governing body of the District which appoints Commissioners may remove any Commissioner for
incompetence, dereliction of duty, or other good cause, after giving due notice in writing of the charges
against the Commissioner and an opportunity to be heard publicly on such charges before the body
which appointed the Commissioner. A copy of the charges and a transcript of the record of the hearing
shall be filed with the governing body of the District.

SECTION 5 FILLING OF VACANCY

Vacancies shall be filled by appointment of the governing body for the remainder of the term.

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 12



RULE VI

CLASSIFICATION PLAN

SECTION 1 MAINTENANCE OF PLAN

The Commission shall adopt and maintain a classification plan which shall group all positions in the
classified service into classes based upon their duties, authorities, responsibilities, and compensation.
The Commission may assign the review of the classification plan to the Fire Chief who will be
responsible for keeping the classification plan current by conducting periodic studies of positions and
making appropriate recommendations to the Commission.

SECTION 2 AMENDMENT OF PLAN

A.

Request for Change. Any officer or employee in the District service may initiate a request to the

Commission to amend the classification plan. If the Fire Chief determines the request to be in
good cause, he/she shall then conduct the necessary investigation of any such request. The
Fire Chief shall also make classification studies or surveys at other times on their initiative and
as directed by the Commission. If the Fire Chief finds that substantial change in organization,
creation or change of positions, or other pertinent conditions makes necessary the modification
of an existing class or the establishment of a new class, recommendation for such an
amendment shall be made to the Commission by the Fire Chief.

Hearings on Changes. The Commission shall hold public hearings on changes in the
classification plan and shall give at least three days of public notice before such hearings. After
hearing suggestions and recommendations, the Commission shall review this information and
act on classification revisions with such modifications as it believes proper.

Changes in ORS. If changes in Oregon Revised Statutes about Civil Service require the
Commission to make corresponding changes in these Civil Service Rules, they may be made
without holding a public hearing on changes.

SECTION 3 CLASSIFICATION OF POSITIONS

A.

Determining Classification. In determining the class to which any position shall be allocated, the
specification describing each class shall be considered as a whole. Consideration shall be
given to the general duties, specific tasks, responsibilities, qualifications and requirements, and
their relationship to other classes, as a composite description of the kind of employment which
the class is intended to embrace.

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 13



New Positions. When the appointing power desires to create a position, a notice of such
proposed action together with a description of the duties of the new position shall be submitted
to the Fire Chief. The Fire Chief shall promptly assign the appropriate class therein based on its
duties, authority, responsibilities, and compensation and shall notify the appointing power of the
official classification.

Reclassification of Positions. Whenever the appointing power desires to make a permanent and
substantial change in the duties, authority, responsibilities, or compensation of a position,
written notification of the proposed change shall be submitted to the Fire Chief for the
determination of the effect, if any, on the classification of the position. The Fire Chief may, upon
own initiative or at the request of the appointing power or employee, study the duties of any
position to determine if the current classification is proper. Whenever the Fire Chief finds that
the change in duties is such that the current classification is no longer correct, he/she shall
report to the Commission the nature of such changes. The Commission may revise the
classification of such positions as it deems proper.

1. Effect of Reclassification on Employee Status

a. No person holding any position under any established classification or grade shall
be affected by such change to deprive the person of any of the benefits attached
to the classification or grade applicable to the position then held by the person.

b. When a position is reclassified to a class that carries a higher salary range, the
incumbent regular or probationary employee shall be accorded probationary
status in the higher class if eligible for certification from the appropriate register.

C. If the position is reclassified to a class that carries a lower salary range, the emp-
loyee's name shall be placed on the promotion register in the same manner as
provided for in voluntary demotion.

Minimum Qualifications Statements. Personal qualifications commonly required of an employee
in any class, such as good citizenship, honesty, loyalty, sobriety, industry, amenability to
supervision and suggestions of superiors for improvement of service, and willingness to
cooperate with associates, shall be implied as qualifications required for entrance to every
class, even though such traits may not be specifically mentioned in the specifications.

SECTION 4 USE OF CLASS TITLE

The class title shall be the official title of every position allocated to the class for the purpose of
personnel actions and shall be used on all payrolls, budget estimates, and official records and reports
relating to the position. Any other working title desired and authorized to be used by the appointing
power may be used as a designation of any position for the purpose of internal administration or in
contact with the public.

RULE VII

APPLICATIONS AND EXAMINATIONS

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 14



SECTION 1 EXAMINATION ANNOUNCEMENTS

A.

Distribution of Announcements. Public announcements of examinations shall be given at least
two weeks in advance of the last date for filing applications. Such announcements shall be
posted on the official bulletin boards of the District and at least two other public places, and
once a week for two weeks in a newspaper of general circulation in the District. The Chief
Examiner may provide for such other publicity as deemed advisable to attract sufficient
numbers of qualified candidates. In the case of promotional examinations, announcements shall
be posted on bulletin boards provided for such purpose. The appointing power shall take
necessary steps to bring announcements to the attention of all eligible employees.

Content of Announcements. Official notices of examinations shall state the duties and pay of
positions in the classes for which the examinations are to be held, the qualifications required,
the time and place and the manner of making application for admission to such examinations,
the different parts of examinations, closing date for filing applications and any other information
which may be considered pertinent.

SECTION 2 ELIGIBILITY TO COMPETE IN EXAMINATIONS

A.

Who May Compete. Examinations designed to establish entrance lists shall be open to all
persons who appear to meet minimum qualifications and other requirements for the class as
stated in the class specification and as outlined in the announcement.

Entrance Requirements. The Governing Body shall establish and may revise requirements
regarding experience, training, physical condition, residency, and other factors that relate to the
ability of candidates to perform effectively the duties of a class.

Competition _in _Promotional Examinations. Promotional examinations shall be open to
employees who have acquired regular or probationary status, meet the minimum qualifications
as stated in the class specification and as outlined in the announcement, and who have held a
position in the classified service in another class or classes for not less than six months
immediately preceding the filing date specified on the announcement. The governing body of
the District reserves the right to declare whether any open or new position shall be filled by a
promotional or entrance examination. If an entrance examination is selected, it would be open
to both qualified employees and non-employees.

SECTION 3 APPLICATIONS

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 15



A. Filing of Applications. All applications must be made upon official District application blanks
filled out as therein directed and filed in the office of the Commission or postmarked on or
before the closing date specified in the examination announcement. Each application must be
signed by the applicant, and such signature constitutes a certification that all information
contained therein is true to the best of the knowledge of the applicant. The Commission may
conduct pre-employment investigations to verify the past employment record and to obtain
other information relating to the qualifications of the applicant.

B. Freedom from Bias. The application form shall contain no question so formed as to elicit any
information concerning the political, racial, or religious affiliations of the applicant. However, this
provision shall not prevent inquiry as to whether the applicant supports the Constitution of the
United States of America.

SECTION 4 ADMISSION TO EXAMINATIONS

Each candidate whose application has been accepted for an examination shall be notified at least 48
hours in advance of the examination by mail or personal service of the time and place of the
examination and such notice shall be considered authorization for admission. No person shall be
permitted to take an examination without such authorization or other satisfactory evidence of the
acceptance of the application. Any applicant whose application has been accepted but who, because
of illness or other good cause, is unable to appear, may at the discretion of the Chief Examiner, be
given the examination at a later date.

SECTION 5 DISQUALIFICATION OF APPLICANTS

The Chief Examiner may reject the application of any person for admission to an examination or
decline to examine any applicant who:

A. Is found to lack the qualifications prescribed for admission to the examination as announced in
the public notice.

B. Is found to be unfit because of previous employment or driving record or for other reasons
reflecting discredit on the applicant.

C. Is physically unfit, even with reasonable accommodation, to effectively perform the duties of the
class.
D. Has been convicted of a crime involving moral turpitude or has been dismissed from the public

service for delinquency or misconduct or has been dishonorably discharged from the armed
forces of the United States.

E. Has used, or attempted to use, political pressure or bribery to secure an advantage in testing or
appointment.

F. Has made false statements of any material fact or practiced, or attempted to practice, deception
or fraud in an application or examination.

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 16



G. Has taken the same examination within the six months preceding the examination date; or
H. Has otherwise violated the provisions of these rules.

Any person whose application has been rejected by the Chief Examiner may appeal such action to the
Civil Service Commission.

SECTION 6 EXAMINATION ADMINISTRATION

A. Conduct of Examinations. Written or performance examinations shall be conducted in such
places as are necessary for the reasonable convenience of applicants within the practical limits
for proper administration and control. The Chief Examiner shall designate the number of
examiners necessary to conduct examinations and provide them with instructions. The Chief
Examiner may also arrange for the use of public buildings in which to conduct these
examinations.

B. Frequency of Examinations.
1. Entrance examinations may be given at least every thirty months if there is a need.
2. Promotional examinations may be given at least every thirty months.
3. For those classes with less than four positions, examinations may be given, as
necessary.

C. Anonymity of Applicants. The identity of persons taking examinations shall not be disclosed to
examiners except where conditions of anonymity are impractical.

SECTION 7 POSTPONEMENT OR CANCELLATION OF EXAMINATIONS

In the event a sufficient number of qualified applicants have not made an application for any
examination, the Chief Examiner may postpone the last filing date, or cancel the examination. In such
case, written notice shall be given to the applicants and appointing authorities concerned.

SECTION 8 CHARACTER OF EXAMINATIONS

Examinations shall be practical and competitive and must be designed to determine the qualifications,
fitness, and ability of candidates to perform the duties of the class for which a register is to be estab-
lished. They may be written, oral, physical, in the form of a demonstration of skill, evaluation of training
and experience, or any combination of such types. They may take into consideration education,
experience, aptitude, capacity, knowledge, character, physical fithess, length, and quality of service,
and other qualifications to determine the relative fitness of the candidates and shall not be related to
political or religious preference. Applicants selected for appointment shall be required to pass a pre-
employment physical examination administered by a licensed physician.

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 17



A. Open-Continuous Examinations. When necessary to meet continuing requirements for filling
positions, and when there is no immediately available large pool of applicants for a class, the
closing date for any examination may be indefinite, and the applicants may be examined
continuously in such manner and at such times and places as the Chief Examiner may provide.
The closing date for an open-continuous examination may be set at any time by giving public
notice, at least two weeks before the effective date.

SECTION 9 RATING OF EXAMINATIONS

A. Method of Rating. In all examinations, a minimum rating shall be established which is required
to achieve eligibility. Such minimum ratings may also apply to the rating on any parts of the
examination, and candidates may be required to obtain minimum ratings on separate parts to
receive passing grades, or to be rated on the remaining parts of the examinations. The final
earned rating of each competitor shall be determined by adding the earned rating on each part
of the examination in accordance with weights established before the date of the examination.
Ratings shall be based on a scale of 100 points.

B. Rating of Experience and Training. When a rating of experience and training forms a part of an
examination, the Chief Examiner shall develop procedures for the evaluation of those factors
that will serve to assist in the selection of the best-qualified candidates. Procedures that are
adopted shall give due regard to quality, recency, amount of experience, and the pertinence
and amount of training. In establishing the value that a rating of experience and training shall
bear to the total examination, and in determining the length of time for which experience credit
shall be awarded, consideration shall be given to the amount of learning time required to
perform efficiently the duties of the position.

SECTION 10 NOTIFICATION OF EXAMINATION RESULTS

The rating of each examination shall be completed, and the resulting list established as soon as
practical after the date on which the examination was held. Each person competing in an examination
shall be given notice of their final rating. Each person competing in an examination may, during the
immediate thirty-day period following notification of examination results, review their examination
papers and have the rating reviewed and corrected if an error is found. No correction shall invalidate
any appointment previously made from the list. The right to review the examination is limited to the
applicant, Commissioners, their staff, and members of the governing body. Examinations may be
reviewed only during regular business hours at the office of the Commission.

SECTION 11 PREFERENCE FOR VETERANS

In all competitive entrance examinations, preference status shall be given to every veteran and
disabled veteran who has completed all phases of a civil service examination. Preference means that
the score of a veteran who has passed the examination shall be increased by five preference points of
the total points available and the score of a disabled veteran who has passed the examination shall be
increased by ten preference points. All such points shall be added to the total combined examination
score of the veteran and shall not be allocated to any single feature or part of the examination. If the
District uses an examination method that does not result in a score, the District will devise and apply

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 18



methods by which the District gives preference in the District's hiring decisions to veterans and
disabled veterans. This provision is to be interpreted to comply with ORS 408.225 - .235 and any
modifications thereof.

SECTION 12 VOLUNTEER PREFERENCE

In all competitive entrance examinations, preference status shall be given to all active Central Oregon
Coast Fire & Rescue District #7 volunteer firefighters who have served a minimum of three (3) years in
good standing. The volunteer meeting District requirements shall qualify for an increase in their score
of 5 points providing a passing grade has been received. All such points shall be added to the total
combined examination score of the volunteer and shall not be allocated to any single feature or part of
the examination.

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 19



SECTION 1

RULE VIII

REGISTERS

ESTABLISHMENT OF REGISTERS

The Commission may establish and maintain lists of eligible person(s) necessary to provide an
adequate supply of qualified candidates for positions in the classified service. Lists shall be
established by the class of employment and shall be District-wide in the application.

SECTION 2

KINDS OF REGISTERS

A. Entrance Register. An entrance register shall be established for such a class of positions to be

filled on an entrance basis and shall consist of the names of all persons who have passed the
entrance examination for that class.

B. Promotion Registers. A promotion list shall be established for each class of positions to be filled

on a promotional basis and shall consist of the names of all employees who have passed a
promotion examination for the class.

SECTION 3 ORDER OF NAMES ON ENTRANCE REGISTERS
A. Entrance Registers.
1. Laid-off Employees. Each entrance register shall be headed by the names of persons

who have been regular employees and who were laid off from a position in that class
through no fault of their own.
Eligible. Names of eligible person(s) shall be placed on lists in the order of their final
earned ratings plus any veterans or volunteer preference credits to which they may be
entitled. Where ties exist, names shall be arranged in order of the candidate whose
application was received first.

B. Promotion Registers.

1.

Demoted Employees. Each promotion register shall be headed by the names of persons
who have been regular employees and who were demoted or reclassified to a lower
class from a position in that class through no fault of their own.

Eligible Employees. Names of those who are eligible shall be placed on lists in the order
of their final earned ratings. Where ties exist, names shall be arranged in order of the
candidate whose application was received first.

C. The order of names of persons laid-off or demoted in "A" or "B" of this section shall be in
inverse order of the date of their layoff or demotion.

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 20



SECTION 4 DURATION OF REGISTERS

A.

Entrance Registers. The duration of eligibility on an entrance register resulting from a layoff is
limited to not more than thirty months from the date of separation from the District service. An
entrance register may not be canceled unless it has been in effect for at least twelve months or
is exhausted and may not continue in effect for longer than thirty months. “Exhausted” means
fewer than three (3) names, except as relates to laid-off prior employees.

Promotion Registers. The duration of eligibility on a promotional register resulting from
demotion or downward reclassification is limited to not more than thirty months from the date of
such demotion or reclassification. A promotion register may not be canceled unless exhausted
or has been in effect for thirty months. “Exhausted” means fewer than three (3) names, except
relating to laid-off, downward reclassification, and demoted prior employees.

Exhaustion Exemption. If the number of employees eligible to be certified to the appointing
authority is less than three for entrance registers and less than two for promotion registers, the
appointing authority, in its sole and complete discretion, may petition the Civil Service
Commission for a continuation of the list for use even though the required number of names are
not available.

SECTION 5 REMOVAL OF NAMES FROM LISTS

The Chief Examiner may remove a name from a list permanently or temporarily for any of the following

reasons:

A. Certification and appointment of an applicant from the list to fill a regular position.

B. Certification and appointment to fill a regular position with the same or higher salary range from
a different list. However, any applicant whose name is so removed may have it restored by
making a written application to the Chief Examiner.

C. Failure to respond within five days to a written inquiry of the Chief Examiner or an appointing
power relative to availability for appointment.

D. Refusal of an offer of an appointment without adequate explanation.

E. Failure to report for duty within the time specified by the appointing power.

F. Expiration of the term of eligibility on the register.

G. Failure to maintain a record of current address with the Commission as evidenced by the return
of properly addressed unclaimed letter, or other evidence.

H. Certification three times to the same appointing authority without receiving appointments.

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 21



Willful violation of any rules of the provisions of the Civil Service Rules for Fire Fighters or these

rules.
J. In case of promotion lists, separation from the District service.
K. Upon a finding by the Chief Examiner or Commission that the person is not qualified to perform

the duties of the class.

L. Upon a finding of the appointing power and concurrence by the Commission that the applicant
is not qualified to perform the duties of the class.

M. Upon request of the eligible person to have his/her name removed.

Any person whose name is removed from the register shall be promptly notified by the Chief Examiner
of the reason for such removal.

SECTION 6 RESTORATION OF NAMES TO ELIGIBLE PERSON(S) LISTS

An eligible person whose name is removed from a list may make a written request to the Chief
Examiner for restoration of his/her name to the list. The request must specify the reasons advanced for
the requested restoration. The Chief Examiner, subject to appeal to the Commission, shall determine
whether the evidence submitted justifies approval of the request.

SECTION 7 AVAILABILITY OF ELIGIBLES PERSON(S)

It shall be the responsibility of eligible person(s) to notify the Commission [District] in writing of
changes in address, or other changes that may affect availability for employment. However, the Chief
Examiner may, from time to time, circulate registers or use other methods to determine the current
availability of eligible person(s).

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 22



RULE IX

CERTIFICATION AND APPOINTMENT

SECTION 1 FILLING VACANT POSITIONS

All vacancies in classified positions shall be filled as provided in these rules. Whenever an appointing
power wishes to fill a vacancy in the classified service, a request for names of qualified eligible
person(s) shall be submitted to the Commission. No appointment to a classified position shall be made
without prior authorization of the Chief Examiner.

SECTION 2 CERTIFICATION OF ELIGIBLES PERSON(S)

A.

Order of Use of Eligible Person(s) Lists. Upon receipt of a request for certification of eligible
person(s), the Chief Examiner shall certify the proper number of available eligible person(s)
from an appropriate list. If no appropriate list exists, the Chief Examiner may authorize appoint-
ment by other prescribed means, with approval from the Fire Chief. Certification shall be made
from the promotion or entrance register based upon the decision of the appointing authority.

Order and Number of Names Certified. Names shall be certified in order of standing on the list.
The number of names certified from the entrance list shall be three. When more than one
vacancy exists, the number of names shall equal the number of vacancies plus two in addition.
From the promotional list, the number of names certified shall be two plus one for each
additional vacancy. The name selected is at the discretion of the appointing authority,
regardless of their standing on the certified list, except that the appointing authority will appoint
an otherwise qualified veteran or disabled veteran to a vacant civil service position if the
veteran or disabled veteran is equally qualified or more qualified for the position’s minimum
requirements than an applicant who is not a veteran or disabled veteran.

Order in Which Certification Will Be Issued. Eligible person(s) shall be certified for vacancies
occurring in a class in order of receipt of requisitions.

Additional Certification to a Vacancy. The Chief Examiner may certify additional names to a
vacancy upon receipt of a written report from an appointing power that, in the Commission's
judgment, justifies a finding that one or more of the eligible person(s) certified would not be
suitable for the position that is to be filled. Religious, racial, or political reasons shall not be
considered as valid reasons for the rejection of a candidate. If the rejection of the appointing
authority is not approved by the Commission, the Commission shall notify the appointing power
of each disapproval and, upon receipt of such notice, the appointing power shall immediately
appoint the certified candidate in question.

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 23



Notice of Eligible Person(s) Not Appointed. Those persons certified to the District but not
appointed shall be so notified by the appointing power within five days after an appointment is
made. This rule will not apply in the case of persons who waive, decline, or fail to appear for an
interview.

Restoration of Names to the Register. The names of those persons certified to the District but
not appointed shall be restored to the register unless subject to Rule VIII, Section 5.

SECTION 3 KINDS OF APPOINTMENTS

A.

Probationary Appointment. The appointing power shall make probationary appointments from
the list of candidates certified. Such appointments are conditioned upon and subject to the
appointee’s satisfactorily completing probation.

Provisional Appointments. If there are no names of qualified candidates on either the
promotional or entrance list for a class in which a vacancy exists, the Chief Examiner may
authorize the provisional appointment of a person meeting the minimum prerequisites for the
class to which the position is allocated. No position shall be filled by provisional appointment
more than once in any calendar year. A provisional appointment is terminated after three
months or when the Chief Examiner establishes an appropriate list, certifies available eligible
person(s), and an appointment is made for the position. Notice of all such appointments made
shall be reported to the Commission at its next regular meeting.

Temporary Appointments. The appointing authority is authorized to make temporary
appointments to assure the continuation of required work. A temporary appointment is limited to
twenty-four calendar weeks. The temporary appointment shall require official personnel action
and the Chief Examiner shall be so notified. The appointing authority will consider existing lists
when making temporary appointments.

Relief Appointments. Where a position exists, the appointing authority may make transfers or
relief appointments to fill absences. Such relief appointments shall be made from the
appropriate eligibility lists were administratively feasible, or the appointing authority may appoint
individuals who meet the minimum prerequisites of the class who are known to have the ability
necessary to perform in said position. Should such appointment to that position exceed eight
weeks, the Chief Examiner shall be so notified. Relief appointment shall not be considered a
promotion if to a position which may have a higher pay scale and return to the employee's
regular position shall not be considered a demotion.

SECTION 4 TRANSFERS

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 24



A. Assignment of Duties. An appointing power may, within a division or organization unit, assign
an employee from one position to another position in the same class without prior approval of
the Commission.

B. Method of Transfer. An appointing power may authorize the transfer of an employee to a similar
position in the same classification. An employee may be transferred from a position in one
division or organization unit to a position in the same class in another division. A transfer of an
employee from a position in one class to a position in another class having a higher salary
range constitutes a promotion and is subject to rules governing appointments and promotions.
A transfer to a position in a class having a lower salary range constitutes a demotion and shall
be subject to rules governing demotions. Transfers must be completed with no more than a ten-
day break in service.

C. Voluntary Demotions. If an employee is qualified and subject to the discretion of the
appointing authority, a request for voluntary demotion may be granted, provided it would not
result in the layoff of another employee. Notice of the action shall be provided to the Civil
Service Commission.

RULE X
PROBATIONARY PERIOD

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 25



SECTION 1 PURPOSE

A probationary period is an integral part of the examination process. It shall be utilized as an
opportunity to observe the employee’s work, to provide special training, to assist the employee in
adjusting to the new position, and as an aid in deciding to reject an employee whose work
performance or personal conduct is unsatisfactory.

SECTION 2 DURATION OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD

Entrance level employment is subject to a probationary period of six (6) consecutive months of
actual service. In determining such six (6) month service, time spent in training and schools, away
from the District, and sick or disability leave time shall not be included. Promotion to any other
position within the classified service is subject to a six (6) consecutive month probationary period.

SECTION 3 DISMISSAL DURING ENTRANCE PROBATIONARY PERIOD

At any time during the entrance probationary period, the appointing power may terminate the
appointment of the person certified if, during any performance examination thus afforded, upon
observation or consideration of the performance of duty, the appointed person is found unfit or
unsatisfactory. The appointing power shall forthwith notify the employee and the Commission in
writing of any such termination of employment. Such action by the appointing power is not subject
to appeal.

SECTION 4 UNSATISFACTORY PERFORMANCE DURING PROMOTIONAL PROBATIONARY
PERIOD

At any time during the promotional probationary period, the appointing power may terminate the
promotional appointment of the person certified if, during the performance of duty, the person is
found unfit or unsatisfactory, provided, however, that the appointing power shall forthwith notify the
employee and the Commission, in writing, of any such termination of a promotional appointment.
The appointed employee shall have the right to revert to a position in the last held regular class if a
vacancy exists.

SECTION 5 REGULAR STATUS

If no action is taken by the appointing power to terminate or reduce in rank a probationary
employee during the probationary period, the employee shall be deemed to have satisfactorily
completed the probationary period and the appointment shall be considered to be regular at the
end of the specified period.

SECTION 6 REMOVAL FROM ELIGIBILITY REGISTER

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 26



If an appointment is not made “regular’ because the District is dissatisfied with the employee’s
performance during the probationary period and the employee is terminated or reduced in rank, the
employee’s name shall be removed from the eligibility register for the position.

RULE XI

SEPARATION IN GOOD STANDING

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 27



SECTION 1 REDUCTION IN FORCE

A.

Reason for Layoff. The governing body may order the layoff of an employee because of the
abolition of a position, shortage of funds or work, a material change in duties, changes in an
organizational unit, or for other reasons which do not reflect discredit on the service of the
employee. Duties performed by laid-off employees may be reassigned to other employees
already working, who hold positions in appropriate classes. No temporary or permanent
separation of an employee from the service as a penalty or disciplinary action shall be consid-
ered a layoff.

Demotion instead of Layoff. Any regular employee who is about to be laid off may file a written
request with the appointing power for demotion instead of layoff. The appointing authority
normally shall grant this request in any class for which the employee has established a right to
Civil Service status, and where it appears that he/she may expect to perform satisfactorily. If in
the opinion of the appointing power the good of the service does not indicate the desirability of
such action, the employee shall be immediately notified, in writing, giving the reasons for
denying the request. The employee may request a review by the Commission of the reasons for
the denial. In all cases where employees are demoted instead of layoff, their names shall be
placed on layoff lists for the classes from which they were demoted.

SECTION 2 RETURN OF NAMES OF LAID-OFF EMPLOYEES TO THE ELIGIBLE Person(s)

LISTS

The names of regular employees laid off or demoted instead of layoff shall be placed on the
appropriate register as provided in Rule VIII, Section 3.

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 28



RULE XII

DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS

SECTION 1 CAUSES FOR DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS

The tenure of persons subject to civil service shall continue during good behavior and such persons
may be dismissed, demoted, suspended without pay, or deprived of special privileges only for the
following causes:

A. Incompetency,

B. Inefficiency,

C. Inattention to duty,
D. Dereliction of duty,

m

Dishonesty of any type (including false or deliberately misleading information or omissions
from employment application),

F. Violation of the District’'s Drug and Alcohol policy,

G. Insubordination,

H. Discourteous treatment of the public or coworkers,

l. Immoral conduct,

J. Any plea of guilty or no contest, or conviction of crimes of moral turpitude (such as crimes
involving dishonesty) or other crimes related to the ability to perform job duties,

K. Repeated or serious violations of the District’s policies or standards of employee conduct, or

L. Any willful failure of good conduct tending to injure the public service.

Any action, which reflects discredit upon the service or is a direct hindrance to the effective
performance of District functions, shall be considered cause for disciplinary action. Such cause
shall also include misconduct, inefficiency, incompetence, insubordination, indolence,
malfeasance, the willful giving of false information or withholding information with the intent to
deceive when making application or when providing information related to an investigation or willful
violation of published District rules, the law, or these Rules.

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 29



No person shall be dismissed, demoted, suspended without pay, or deprived of special privileges for
political, racial, or religious reasons.

Nothing herein prohibits the Appointing Authority from using lesser forms of punishment or
administrative action, including oral and written reprimands and suspension with or without pay to
which this Rule does not apply.

SECTION 2 PROCEDURE FOR TAKING DISCIPLINARY ACTION

If disciplinary action covered by this Rule is to be taken against an employee, it should be done in a
manner that will not embarrass the employee before other employees or the public. For all forms of
disciplinary action, the supervisor should follow established District procedures and should keep the
Chief fully informed of any action taken. When it is necessary to suspend without pay, discharge,
demote or deny special privileges to an employee, the following steps shall be taken:

A. The supervisor shall prepare, in writing, a statement of the reason(s) for proposed disciplinary
action, stating dates, location, rules, and regulations violated, and particular actions, if appropri-
ate. The written statement should include previous oral warnings given and any written
warnings previously given to the employee. The statement should be delivered to the Chief for
review and necessary action.

B. After a review of the supervisor's statement, the Chief shall present the employee with the
information provided by the supervisor and outline to the employee any investigation to be
made and the disciplinary action being considered by the Chief. The Chief should give the
employee a reasonable opportunity to respond in person or in writing to the supervisor's
statement before action is taken. If a hearing is requested with the Chief by the employee, the
employee may be represented by any person of their choosing.

C. If, after the employee has responded, the Chief still believes disciplinary action is appropriate,
the Chief should prepare a letter outlining the course of action to be taken.

D. The Chief should notify the employee by certified mail, or if possible, by hand-delivering the
letter and the personnel action form. A copy of these materials should be provided to the Civil
Service Commission.

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 30



RULE XIII

APPEALS, HEARINGS, AND INVESTIGATIONS

SECTION 1 APPEALS

A.

Appeals Related to Civil Service Examinations and Hiring. Applicants who want to appeal
their final examination rating may do so within ten (10) calendar days of the date the
examination results are mailed by sending a written notice of appeal to the Chief Examiner.
The notice of appeal must provide a detailed explanation of why the applicant believes the
rating is incorrect. The Chief Examiner will review the rating and correct the rating if an error
is found. Corrections will be prospective only; no correction will invalidate any appointment
previously made from the list.

Applicants whose names are removed from an entrance or promotion register (other than
due to the expiration or cancellation of the register as outlined in these rules), may appeal
within ten (10) calendar days of the date the notice is mailed by sending a written notice of
appeal to the Chief Examiner. The appeal must request restoration to the Register and must
include a detailed explanation of why the applicant should be restored to the Register as well
as any supporting documentation. The Chief Examiner will review the information and
provide a written decision. Applicants who are still not satisfied after receiving the Chief
Examiner's decision may appeal to the Commission within fifteen (15) calendar days from the
date the decision is mailed. The written appeal to the Commission must include a copy of all
material provided to the Chief Examiner, the Chief Examiner's decision, and a detailed
explanation of why the applicant believes the Chief Examiner's decision is incorrect. The
Commission will investigate and issue a written decision within thirty (30) calendar days.

Appeals of Demotions, Reductions in Pay, Suspensions Without Pay, or Discharges.
Employees in Civil Service positions may appeal disciplinary demotions, reductions in pay,
suspensions without pay, and discharges only as outlined in these Rules. Lesser forms of
discipline are not subject to appeal under these Rules.

1. Union Employees. All probationary and regular employees whose employment is
governed by the terms of a current collective bargaining agreement and who want to
appeal a demotion, reduction in pay, suspension without pay, or discharge decision
must use the grievance and arbitration procedure in their union contract. Such
employees do not have appeal rights under these Rules unless they waive, in writing
and promptly, all rights granted to them to appeal such decision under the current
collective bargaining agreement including acceptance of such waiver by an
authorized bargaining unit representative.

2. Non-Union Employees. Regular non-union employees in Civil Service positions who
have been demoted, reduced in pay for discipline, suspended without pay, or
discharged may appeal those forms of discipline to the Commission. Employees in

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 31



their initial probationary period do not have appeal rights under these Rules,
regardless of the form of discipline. During their probationary period, promoted non-
union employees have appeal rights under these Rules for the referenced actions,
except demotion.

3. All appeals under this section must be made in writing and must be filed with the
Commission chair within seven (7) days after the effective date of the demotion,
disciplinary reduction in pay, suspension without pay, or discharge. To be considered
by the Commission, written appeals must include:

a. A detailed explanation of the facts leading up to the discipline and the reasons
why the employee believes the disciplinary action was improper,

b. The names of all relevant witnesses, and

C. A copy of all materials and documentation supporting the complaint.

SECTION 2 DISCIPLINARY HEARINGS

A.

Procedure. Commission hearings on appeals from disciplinary action shall be open to the
public and informal. Both the employee and the Appointing Power shall be given written
notification of the time and place of a hearing at least ten (10) days in advance and shall
have the right to have subpoenas issued by the Commission, present witnesses, and give
evidence before the Commission.

Witness Fees. Every person served with a subpoena requiring attendance before the
Commission shall be entitled to the same fees and mileage as are allowed by law to
witnesses in civil suits and actions, except that no person shall be entitled to any fees or
mileage who is employed in the Public Service or political subdivision to which they are
called as a witness. The fees and mileage allowed by this section need not be pre-paid, but
the governing body of the political subdivision shall provide for the payment thereof when
certified by the Commission.

Conduct of Hearings. A hearing before the Commission is intended solely to receive
evidence either to refute or to substantiate specific charges which the Commission has been
requested to examine. It shall not be made an occasion for uttering irresponsible
accusations, attacking the character or conduct of an employer or employee, or making
other derogatory comments having no bearing on the charges under investigation. The
Commission in conducting such hearings is not bound by the standard Rules of Evidence.

Counsel or Representative. In appealing a disciplinary action to the Commission, an
employee is not required to have counsel. The appellant may examine and cross-examine
witnesses, make statements, summarize testimony, and otherwise conduct a hearing. An
employee may choose to be represented by counsel or another person.

SECTION 4 COMMISSION FINDINGS

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 32



A. Commission Findings. If, after receiving evidence presented in a hearing on disciplinary
actions, the Commission finds the complained-of action taken by the Appointing Power was
made in good faith for cause, the Commission may affirm or modify the action. If the
Commission finds that the complained-of action taken by the Appointing Power was not
made in good faith or cause, the employee shall be reinstated to the previous position and
shall not suffer any loss of pay or status. The Commission, instead of affirming the
disciplinary action, may modify the order as the circumstances may warrant. The action of
the Commission shall be certified in writing to the Appointing Power who shall put it into
effect. All other findings of the Commission resulting from any hearing on complaints or
suggestions normally shall be in the form of recommendations. Commission findings will be
issued within thirty (30) days of the conclusion of the hearing.

B. Other Commission Investigations. The Commission will investigate the enforcement and
effect of these Rules whenever a resident of the District or an employee in a Civil Service
position submits a verified written complaint alleging violation(s) or abuse(s) of these Rules.
All written complaints must be submitted within thirty (30) days after the alleged violation or
abuse, must be signed, and must include:

1. A detailed explanation of the alleged violation(s) or abuse(s) of these Rules,

2. The Civil Service position(s) that the person believes to be affected by the violation(s)
or abuse(s) of these Rules,

3. The names of relevant witnesses, and
4. A copy of all materials and documentation supporting the complaint.

In addition, the Commission will investigate whenever it decides that any violation(s) or
abuse(s) of these Rules may have occurred within the previous thirty (30) days.
Commission investigations will generally include an inspection of all Civil Service positions
cited in the complaint and a determination of whether there has been a violation of these
Rules. The Commission’s decision will be made in writing and will address all matters
investigated.

SECTION 5 APPEAL TO CIRCUIT COURT

A. Appeal to Circuit Court. Any decision of the Commission affecting any regular employee or
employees may be appealed to the Circuit Court of Lincoln County, Oregon by ORS
242.804.

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 33



RULE XIV

RECORDS AND REPORTS

SECTION 1 ROSTER

The Commission shall establish and maintain a roster of all employees in the classified service
showing for each employee the class title, assignment, salary rate, date of employment, and such
other employment data as is deemed pertinent.

SECTION 2 REPORTS TO THE COMMISSION

Every appointment, transfer, promotion, demotion, dismissal, change of salary rate, leave of absence
without pay, or other temporary or permanent change in the status of classified employees shall be
reported to the Commission in writing on such forms as the Commission may require.

SECTION 3 DESTRUCTION OF RECORDS

Records other than examination papers may be destroyed after four (4) years. Original examination
papers shall be retained for four (4) years, after which time they may be microfilmed.

SECTION 4 PUBLIC RECORDS

Except for examination material, service ratings, personal history, and other confidential papers as
may be specified in these rules or by the action of the Commission, records of the Commission shall
be public records. Such records shall be open to inspection by the public during regular office hours by
such procedures as the Commission may provide.

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 34



RULE XV

PROHIBITIONS AND PENALTIES

SECTION 1 PROHIBITED CONDUCT GENERALLY

No person shall:

A. Alone or in cooperation with one or more persons, defeat, deceive, or obstruct any person in
respect to the right of that person of examination or registration according to the regulations
prescribed by the Commission under these Civil Service Rules.

B. Falsely mark, grade, estimate, or report upon the examination or proper standing of any person
examined, registered, or certified according to these Civil Service Rules, or aid in so doing, or
make any false representation concerning the same or concerning the person examined.

C. Furnish to any person any special or secret information for either improving or injuring the
prospects or chances of any person so examined, registered, or certified or to be examined,
registered, or certified.

D. Impersonate any other person to permit or aid in any manner any other person to impersonate
the individual in connection with any examination or registration or application or request to be
examined or registered.

SECTION 2 POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND ACTIVITIES

No person holding any position subject to civil service is under any obligation to contribute to any
political or religious fund or to render any political service to any person or party. No person shall be
removed, reduced in grade or salary, or otherwise prejudiced for refusing to do so. No person shall
discharge, promote, demote orin any manner change the official rank, employment, or compensation
of any person subject to civil service or promise or threaten to do so forgivingly, withholding or
neglecting to make any contribution of money or services or any other valuable thing for any political,
racial, or religious purpose.

The Commission shall prohibit persons subject to civil service from furthering the cause of any
candidate for nomination or election to the governing body of the political subdivision by which they are
employed.

SECTION 3 PENALTIES

Willful violation of any of the provisions of ORS 242.720, 242.738, 242.768, 242.772, 242.792,
242.822, and 242.824 is a misdemeanor.

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT #7
CIVIL SERVICE RULES Page 35



	Board packet.pdf
	COCFR Board of Directors Agenda--October 20, 2022.pdf
	COCFRD 09082022.pdf
	COCFRD Specmtg 09292022.pdf
	Financials.pdf
	COCFRD - PL by Class - July22-Sept22.pdf
	COCFRD - PL by Class - September 2022.pdf
	COCFRD - Budget vs Actual July22-Sept22.pdf
	COCFRD - Balance Sheet Sept. 30 2022.pdf

	Chief Report.pdf

	Civil Services Rules.pdf



